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The Julian calendar, which started the New Year on 25 March, was in use until the end of 1752. In this volume, the year is given as it was at the time of the event.
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JANUARY 1ST



1903: Members of the Gloucester Orpheus Society gave their fifth annual concert at Shire Hall. The Society – a male-voice choir – had been founded by Herbert Brewer, the Cathedral organist, in 1898. A large audience attended to listen to a programme, which was later judged to be one of the best and most enjoyable yet provided by the Society. Members provided ten items to the programme, including Mr Lee, who contributed a song entitled Encouragement to a Lover. The composer listened to its performance from the body of the hall, and on its completion was compelled to take a bow. The President, Sir Hubert Parry, and the Conductor, Herbert Brewer, had both written pieces especially for the Society. Parry came onto the stage to conduct his own work, entitled The Loyal Ode. (The Citizen)


[image: Image]


1859: Gloucester folk who had made New Year’s resolutions to get their painful feet seen to were informed in an advertisement that Mr J. Anderson would be available on January 7th and 8th only, at No. 9 Southgate Street, to treat ‘tender feet’. Corns, bunions, ‘callosities’ and defective toenails could all be extracted in two minutes, using a new system, without cutting or causing the least pain. Mr Anderson’s rates were 5 shillings per corn. (Gloucester Journal)




JANUARY 2ND



1888: At the City Petty Sessions, held on this day at the Police Courts in Gloucester, Mr Chipp, the Deputy Chief Constable of Police, was able to inform the Mayor that at this, the first court of the New Year, there were no prisoners to be tried and no summonses to be issued. Therefore, according to custom, he took great pleasure in presenting the Mayor with a pair of white kid gloves. He thought it spoke well for the citizens of Gloucester, which contained 32 miles of streets and nearly 40,000 inhabitants, that during the holidays no crime had been committed and no extension of opening hours in the inns abused. (The Citizen)
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1935: At a meeting of Gloucester City Council, it was decided to give the go-ahead to the building of the first municipal flats in Gloucester, on a new housing estate at Tredworth. There were to be 174 homes in total, consisting of 150 houses and twenty-four flats. It was expected that the cost of laying out the site would be about £7,904. The erection of the flats was strongly objected to by Councillors Blackwell and Edwards. Mr Edwards said flats were not desirable as habitations, and the only reason they were built in places such as London and Chicago was lack of land, which was not a problem in Gloucester. (Cheltenham Chronicle)




JANUARY 3RD



1887: The Citizen commented on the weather so far in the New Year as being ‘old-fashioned’ and ‘seasonable’. There had been an intense frost on the night of January 1st, and the next day the canal was frozen, so skating was ‘extensively indulged in’. (The Citizen)


[image: Image]


1906: The inmates of Gloucester Workhouse were entertained by pupils of Barton House School. Dramatic scenes enacted included the trial scene from Alice in Wonderland and ‘Mrs Gamp and Mrs Prig at tea’. There were also recitals and songs. The entertainment was quite different from the usual school display, but it was remarked that the performance gave evidence of a sound and thorough instruction in elocution, and the musical part of the programme was so good that the audience called for more. (The Citizen)
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1942: It was reported that the Mayor of Gloucester, Trevor Wellington, had been made a Commander of the Order of the British Empire in the New Year’s Honours List, for his work as Mayor and as ARP Controller for the city. Mr Wellington was in his fifth year as Mayor. Also honoured was Mr P.E.G. Sayer, Chief Test Pilot of Gloster Aircraft Company, who received an OBE. (Gloucester Journal)




JANUARY 4TH



1774: On this day, many of the citizens of Gloucester had gathered on the banks of the River Severn to enjoy the generosity of one of the parliamentary candidates for Gloucester, who had left 100 guineas with his agent, ‘for the purpose of merriment’. The money had been used to provide a bullock, which was to be roasted whole, and two hogsheads of ale, for the public. As the river was frozen, it had been decided to roast the bullock on the ice. Once this had begun, the company, estimated at about 2,000, walked onto the frozen water to get their meal, but before they could get off again, the ice gave way and about 100 people went into the water. Unfortunately, about twenty of them were drowned. (Gloucester Journal)
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1895: A meeting was held at Garrett’s restaurant with a view to starting an Angling Society in Gloucester. Mr J. Thornbury took the chair, and the secretary and committee members were chosen. It was decided that the club should be called ‘The Gloucester Popular Angling Association’. Subscriptions were to be 1s 6d a year, including the cost of a licence. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 5TH



1911: The annual County Ball was held at the Guildhall. The ballroom had been decorated in a pink and white colour scheme, with the walls hung with drapery and baskets of flowers suspended from festoons which linked the lights. The music was supplied by Herr Yantian’s Austro-Hungarian Band, while refreshments were provided by John A. Fisher & Son, the well-known Royal Purveyors of Gloucester.


The stewards were Sir Lionel Darell, Sir William Guise, Colonel Curtis Hayward, Mr Michael G. Lloyd-Baker, Mr J.D. Crewdson and Mr W.F. Clifford. Over 300 guests were present and it was agreed afterwards that it had been a brilliant assembly, and successful in every way. (Cheltenham Looker-on)




JANUARY 6TH



1889: A meeting of the Gloucestershire Engineering Society was held in the Co-operative Hall, to hear a lecture given by Professor Greenwood, on the subject of ‘Steel’. Mr Platt (of Fielding and Platt) presided, and in introducing the lecturer, referred to steel as the material of the future for engineers, remarking that it was gradually superseding iron. Professor Greenwood then delivered his lecture, agreeing with the president as to the great future of steel. He described, at length, the different kinds of steel and the methods of manufacturing it, and at the close, answered questions from the audience. The lecturer was listened to with great attention by a large gathering of people connected with the engineering trade in Gloucester. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 7TH



1894: Conducting Sunday service at St Paul’s Church, the Revd J. Talbot Gardiner said that before delivering his sermon, he wanted to make a few remarks concerning the disgraceful condition of the Cemetery Chapel. He had been conducting a funeral there on Friday, and when he entered the chapel he found several of the cemetery officials seated upon a bier in front of the fire, eating their dinner with their hats on. He did not blame the men, as it was very cold and they had to eat their meals somewhere. Besides, there was nothing to remind them that this was a consecrated building. It was dirtier and more cheerless than most people’s kitchens, and there was not a single piece of church furniture or a Christian symbol to be seen. He blamed the members of the Gloucester Corporation, who ‘distressed the feelings of the bereaved at a time when most were overcome with woe’. He wished to protest most emphatically against such a condition of things and hoped his hearers would help him in having it remedied. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 8TH



1946: An ex-serviceman who was found in Gloucester to be in possession of a brass knuckleduster and a Colt .32 automatic pistol, loaded with two bullets, was sent to prison for six months by city magistrates. Bertram Ronald Langley, aged 26, of no fixed address, said he bought the firearm for £3 off an American who was broke, about a month previously. He said he carried the pistol because he had nowhere to keep it, being of no fixed address. He had tried to dispose of it with Gloucester and Cheltenham gunsmiths, and other people, including ‘Yanks’, without success. He carried the knuckleduster for self-defense, in case he stayed in a rough house and was attacked.


A charge that he was carrying the gun with intent to endanger life was dismissed, as there was no evidence of this. He was found guilty on three further charges; of being in possession of the pistol when he was not the holder of a firearms certificate, with being in unlawful possession of US Government property, and with stealing money from friends he stayed with in Bristol. He was sentenced to two months imprisonment for each offence, which were to run consecutively. (Gloucester Journal)




JANUARY 9TH



1806: Muffled bells were sounded from Gloucester’s churches, to mark the funeral in London of ‘the good, the great and immortal’ Lord Nelson, who had been killed at the Battle of Trafalgar. (Gloucester Journal)
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1841: John Goulter Dowling, Master of the Crypt Grammar School, died. Born in Gloucester on April 18th 1805, the son of an alderman, he himself had been a pupil at the Crypt School. After taking his degree at Wadham College, Oxford, he was given the mastership of the Crypt School by the Corporation, who were the patrons of the establishment. He was ordained as a priest in 1829 by Christopher Bethell, the Bishop of Gloucester. In 1834, The Lord Chancellor presented him to the rectory of St Mary de Crypt Church, with St Owen’s. He held this with the mastership of the school until his death. He was said to have been esteemed and greatly loved by his pupils, his parishioners and fellow citizens, who had a stained-glass window put into the great east window of his church, as a memorial. (Oxford Dictionary of National Biography)




JANUARY 10TH



1876: Albert Mansbridge, the founder of the Workers’ Educational Association, was born in Gloucester. As the son of a carpenter, lack of money meant he had to leave school at the age of 14. He became a clerical worker, but continued to educate himself, and attended university extension courses at King’s College, London. Eventually he began teaching courses himself, while still doing clerical work for a living. He felt that university extension courses were elitist, being aimed at the upper and middle classes. In 1903, he founded ‘An Association to Promote the Higher Education of Working Men’, a name wisely changed to the Workers’ Educational Association (WEA). Mansbridge was able to leave his clerical job in 1905, becoming full-time General Secretary of the WEA. He died on August 22nd 1922, in Torquay. (Encyclopedia Britannica)




JANUARY 11TH



1817: A sentry who was on guard at the hospital of the 28th Regiment, near the Foreign Bridge, was attacked and gored by a cow which was being driven out of town. His body was ripped open from the groin upwards and his intestines badly injured. He was conveyed to the Infirmary without much hope for his recovery, but the skill and attention of the surgeon there meant he was expected to recover. (Gloucester Journal)
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1878: At Gloucester Magistrates’ Court, fourteen publicans were summonsed, charged with selling gin adulterated with water. In the case of Thomas Barnes of the Bell Inn, Barton Street, evidence was given by two police constables who had gone into the inn on September 25th the previous year, and bought half a pint of gin, which was sent for analysis. The sample was found to be 26 per cent gin and 74 per cent water. Barnes was fined ten shillings and costs, and his Counsel notified the court that he would appeal, because of irregularities in the way the gin sample was obtained. The other cases were left on file until the outcome of the appeal was known. In London the following month, Barnes’s conviction was quashed. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 12TH



1886: A cab-driver named Thomas Overthrow was involved in an accident in Bristol Road. He was returning from taking a fare and had reached the Robinhood Inn, when his horse shied and bolted towards the Wagon Works. It had not gone far when it reached a coal cart and a timber wagon, and tried to pass between them. The cab was lifted off its wheels and the driver was thrown heavily to the ground. The horse dashed off again, but was caught before further damage was done. Overthrow was taken to the Infirmary, where he lay for two hours in a semi-conscious state. Fortunately, he had not suffered any serious injury, and was expected to be able to resume work before long. The horse and cab belonged to Mrs Franklin, of the Ram Mews. (The Citizen)
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1948: A small fire broke out at the home of the Cathedral organist, in College Green. It was found that the gas had been ignited by a short circuit of the electricity. (Gloucester Journal)




JANUARY 13TH



1930: The Citizen reported that the level of the Severn was at a few inches over 20 feet. The waters had risen by 9 inches after two days of very heavy rain, and on this day the water was 2 inches over the quay wall. A big tide was expected in three days’ time, which would cause the river to rise by as much as 12 feet. There was already some flooding, as the waters had not completely receded since the last time the river had burst its banks. The cricket pavilion on Castle Meadow, which had been floating about in the water since the last floods, had been secured to a tree, but during a gale the previous night, it had ‘turned turtle’, spilling out its contents – cricket bats and stumps – which were now floating around the meadow. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 14TH



1909: The High School for Girls’ new building in Denmark Road was formally opened by Lord Stanley of Alderley. The school had first opened in 1883 as a Girl’s Lower School, under the control of the Gloucester United Endowed Schools governing body. Its first home was at Mynd House in Barton Street, then in 1904 it moved to Bearland House. In 1906, the school was renamed the Girls’ High School, and provided education for females aged between 8 and 18 years. Three years later, the school moved again, this time to a purpose-built building in Denmark Road, and became Denmark Road High School for Girls. Under the Education Act of 1944, it became a secondary grammar school. (The Citizen; A History of the County of Gloucester, Volume IV: The City of Gloucester, ed. N.M. Herbert, 1988)




JANUARY 15TH



1817: An auction was held at the Ram Inn, Gloucester, for a ‘desirable Freehold Estate’ belonging to Edward Tipton, a vintner, dealer and chapman, who had been declared bankrupt. As well as an estate in Herefordshire, Tipton owned The White Hart Inn, situated in Southgate Street, which was described as ‘the greatest thoroughfare for travelling in the City of Gloucester’. It offered commodious stabling, excellent cellaring and attached and detached offices. According to the auctioneer’s advertisement, the inn had been long celebrated as a travellers’ house, as well as a place for conducting town business, and was ‘too well known as such to require any recommendation through the medium of an advertisement’.


Also on offer was ‘a desirable and commodious dwelling-house, conspicuous shop and premises’, eligibly situated for trade in Westgate Street, almost opposite the new Shire Hall, occupied by Mr Whittick, perfumer, and another premises and shop adjoining, in College Street, then occupied by Mr William Smart. Those interested were invited to send for further particulars, by post-paid letter, to Messrs Bowyer, Mr W.C. Ward, or Mr Chadborn, Solicitors, of Gloucester. (Gloucester Journal)




JANUARY 16TH



1794: The idea of having a lunatic asylum in Gloucester had first been raised at a meeting of the Gloucester Infirmary Board in January 1792. In September 1793, it was resolved that a ‘General Hospital for Insane Persons’ should be established, and fundraising began. After four months, sufficient funds had been gathered to call a general meeting of subscribers, which took place on this day. At the meeting, a treasurer, secretary and committee were appointed, and a declaration was made that the Gloucester Lunatic Asylum was proposed to be ‘a general establishment for the reception of all persons offered for admission who should be adjudged to be labouring under an unsound state of mind’.


Although there had been a good start to the raising of subscriptions, it took until 1811 for enough money to be collected for building work to begin, and it was another two years before a site was chosen in the parish of Wotton. Finally, in July 1823, the committee met to adopt the rules of the establishment, and the hospital was ready to accept its first patients. The asylum became known as the Horton Road Hospital. (Bailey, A., ‘An Account of the First Gloucestershire County Asylum, now Horton Road Hospital, Gloucester, 1792-1823’, in Transactions of the Bristol and Gloucestershire Archaeological Society, Volume 90)




JANUARY 17TH



1925: During a rugby match between Gloucester and the Old Blues at Kingsholm, forward Stanley Bayliss was injured after a line-out. He was taken to hospital in a critical condition and was found to have a damaged spinal cord. He died three days later. It was reported that he was conscious until shortly before his death. He was attended by his wife and parents, and fellow players Tom Voyce and Frank Ayliffe were also present.


At the coroner’s inquest which followed, it was stated that Bayliss’s injury was caused to the back of his neck as he ran with the ball after a line-out. He jerked his neck forward then fell down, with two forwards on top of him. In his evidence as a witness, the referee said there was a line-out and that Bayliss caught the ball and ran, was tackled, and then fell on his back. When admitted to the Infirmary, he was almost completely paralysed from the neck down. The Coroner found that there had been no foul play and a verdict of accidental death was returned.


Bayliss was 26 years old and was employed as a clerk by Western Farmers Ltd. He had played rugby for six years. In the First World War, he had served in the Royal Artillery. His funeral took place on January 23rd, with a service held at Northgate Wesleyan Chapel. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 18TH



1804: A woman who was believed to have been abducted from her home in London was found safe and well at the Bell Inn, Gloucester. Mrs Lee, a famous beauty, was supposed to have been taken against her will by two brothers, Lockhart and Loudon Gordon. They had travelled from London into Oxfordshire, spending the night in Tetsworth, before continuing on their journey as far as Gloucester. Mrs Lee had shared a room at Tetsworth with Loudon Gordon, and the brothers found themselves standing trial at Oxford County Court, charged with abducting and ‘defiling’ her. They were acquitted, but the characters of both were commented on by the judge.


The Gordon brothers later published a pamphlet, giving their version of events. They said that Loudon had been in love with Mrs Lee and had asked her to elope with him. She agreed on condition that Lockhart, who was a clergyman, came with them, because Loudon was too young and not of high enough social position to protect her. When her servants saw her leaving with the brothers, Mrs Lee told them that she was going against her will, leading to a chase by a Bow Street Officer which ended at the Bell Inn. The Gordon brothers insisted that they had been victims of an artful and treacherous woman. (The Times)




JANUARY 19TH



1787: On this day, a ‘wonderful large ox’ owned by Anthony Mills, which had been touring the country and had appeared before the Royal Family twice, was shown at the New Inn. It was said to resemble an elephant in its hind parts, but was bigger. From nose to rump it measured 12 feet 10 inches. In girth, it was 12 feet 6 inches, and it was 18 hands and a half high. Despite its size, it was reported to be as tame and gentle as a lap dog. (Gloucester Journal)


[image: Image]


1941: Scouts and Guides from Gloucester, Cheltenham and Stroud attended a memorial service at the Cathedral, for the founder of the movement, Lord Baden Powell, who had died on January 8th. During the service, which was conducted by the Dean of Gloucester, the Scouts and Guides re-affirmed their promise to the movement. The Scouts were also mourning the death of Sir John Birchell, County Commissioner, who had done a great deal for Gloucestershire scouting. (Gloucester Journal)




JANUARY 20TH



1907: Christabel Pankhurst, co-founder with her mother Emmeline of the Women’s Social and Political Union, visited Gloucester to speak about the Suffragette movement and the more militant tactics now being employed to gain publicity. Miss Pankhurst had been imprisoned in 1905 for shouting demands at a Liberal Party meeting. Her appearance at the Glevum Hall, at the invitation of the Gloucester branch of the Independent Labour Party, caused a great deal of excitement and the hall was packed, with some people not being able to gain admittance.


She received a warm reception when she rose to speak. During a long speech, she said forty-one women had been arrested so far during their campaign, and that she would like to see some Gloucester women prisoners – a comment that was greeted with nervous laughter. She said that the current campaign to give the vote to only a part of the female population would enfranchise an estimated one and a half million women, which would still be a very small portion of the electorate as a whole. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 21ST



1899: A fire broke out at the premises of the Gloucester City and County Cycle Company Ltd, which was situated in Westgate Street, close to the Cathedral. The fire was spotted at about half past eight in the evening, in the back premises of the cycle depot. Shortly after the fire brigade arrived, the whole building was engulfed in flames. The various rooms were lined with pitch pine matchboards, which burned like tinder. The temperature was like a furnace, making it impossible for the firemen to reach the source of the blaze. After about an hour, the fire was suppressed, revealing hundreds of cycles lying in heaps on the blackened floor, their metal frames twisted into strange shapes. A shop on one side of the cycle shop had its roof largely destroyed. Boots the Chemist on the other side suffered no damage to its building, but much of its stock was spoilt by smoke and water. (Western Daily Press)
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1921: A second High School for Girls was opened by the Gloucester United Schools governors, at Ribston Hall in Spa Road. Like the Denmark Road School, this establishment became a grammar school under the 1944 Education Act. In 1961, the school moved to new buildings in Stroud Road, but retained the name of their original site. (A History of the County of Gloucester, Volume IV: The City of Gloucester, ed. N.M. Herbert, 1988)




JANUARY 22ND



1795: Prince William, Duke of Gloucester, the brother of King George III, arrived in the city to take command of his regiment, which was quartered there. After spending the night at the King’s Head, he reviewed his troops the next day, in College Green. Later, he treated his men to a dinner at the Booth Hall Inn. (Gloucester Journal)
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1878: A meeting was held in the Tolsey to consider a scheme to establish a Coffee House Company in the city. Mr W.C. Lucy presided. The idea was to give people, especially working men, somewhere to go for refreshments which didn’t sell alcoholic drinks. A coffee house had already been opened at the docks in 1877 and had been successful. A resolution was adopted in favour of forming a Gloucester Coffee House Company. The company opened its first coffee house in Eastgate Street, on May 25th 1878. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 23RD



1847: In its ‘Nooks and Crannies of Old England’ series, the Illustrated London News carried a sketch and piece on the old Booth Hall in Westgate Street. The timber-framed building was under threat of demolition, a new Shire Hall having been built next to it in 1816. The publication commented that Gloucester, like many other provincial towns, was rapidly losing its picturesque old timber houses, which were being replaced with new, modern buildings.


A building named the Booth Hall was believed to have been in use as a public meeting place, the Shire Hall and a market hall from at least 1559. The hall was accessed through an inn which fronted Westgate Street, and after the new Shire Hall was built, it was used as stabling for the hotel. Despite the fears expressed in the article, the Booth Hall survived for over 100 years more. The property became the Alhambra Music Hall in the 1860s, later renamed the Royal Albert Hall. In 1902, it was changed into the King’s Theatre and Opera House which, from 1907, showed moving pictures as well as hosting live entertainments. It remained as an entertainment venue until the 1930s. During the Second World War, the hall was used as a storage depot. Finally, the old Booth Hall was demolished, to make way for an extension to Shire Hall, in 1957. (Illustrated London News; A History of the County of Gloucester, Volume IV: The City of Gloucester, ed. N.M. Herbert, 1988)




JANUARY 24TH



1820: The anniversary of the Gloucestershire Constitutional Whig Club was celebrated in Gloucester, on the birthday of the late Right Honourable Charles James Fox. It was raining heavily, and fears that the roads would become impassable prevented many of the members who lived in the countryside from attending, but a party of fifty gentlemen of the highest respectability still gathered. Colonel Berkeley was called to the Chair and presided. During the course of the morning, the club elected new officers. Colonel Berkeley was unanimously re-elected as President for the next three years, and M. Colchester Esq. was chosen as Vice-President. Several new members were then balloted for and enrolled.


At four o’clock the company sat down to an excellent dinner, served up by Mr Dowling in his best style. On the removal of the cloth, a great number of patriotic toasts were drunk and several speeches, ‘fraught with sentiments of the most patriotic nature’, were delivered with great effect. The party did not separate until a late hour. (Bath Chronicle)




JANUARY 25TH



1616: William Laud, who had been installed as the Dean of Gloucester Cathedral by proxy the previous December, took his oaths in person at Gloucester and attended his first Chapter meeting on this day. Laud had been chosen by King James I to go to Gloucester and deal with the city’s worrying puritan tendencies. The new Dean was soon causing tension at the Cathedral; one of his first acts was to move the communion table from the centre of the choir to the east end, much to the dismay of the Bishop of Gloucester, Miles Smith. It was said that Smith refused to enter the Cathedral again until Laud had gone.


Laud left Gloucester in 1621 to become Bishop of St David’s. He became Archbishop of Canterbury in 1633. His High Church views and his closeness to King Charles I got him into trouble with the Long Parliament of 1640, which accused him of treason. He was imprisoned in the Tower of London in 1641 and executed on Tower Hill three years later. (Taylor, B., ‘William Laud, Dean of Gloucester, 1616-21’, in Transactions of the Bristol and Gloucestershire Archaeological Society, Volume 77)




JANUARY 26TH



1892: Gloucester Gymnasium Club members gave a display at the Public Baths in Barton Street. Hinton’s band opened the proceedings by striking up a lively waltz, and twenty-eight members of the club trooped in, headed by the instructor, Mr Maxwell. The group went through dumb-bell practice, keeping time to the music. This was followed by six athletes performing on the parallel bars.


Sergeant-Major Hayward and Trooper Stokes next went through a sword exercise. Messrs Maxfield and Lugg then entered the arena with foils and fenced for about ten minutes. Mr Maxfield and six others then went through a performance on the vaulting horse, which was much enjoyed by the audience, as was the Indian club display given next. This was followed by a friendly boxing match, after which several members displayed their jumping abilities.


Sergeant-Major Bull was on next, to put twenty-four members through a physical drill, keeping time with the band. Sergeant-Major Hayward and Trooper Stokes then went through the lance exercise, after which there was another performance on the horizontal bars. Several members of the club, together with some boys from Sir Thomas Rich’s School, showed off some somersaults next, after which there was another boxing bout. The entertainment was brought to a close by a tug-of-war. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 27TH



1884: On this Sunday morning, a fight took place at Robinswood Hill, between Henry Head and Henry Brown. Head, nicknamed ‘Tails’, and Brown fought for an hour and fifteen minutes, watched by about forty spectators. The fight ended when the police were seen approaching. The parties appeared in the Petty Sessions court on February 2nd. When asked if this had been a prize fight, Mr Chipp, the Deputy Chief Constable, replied that his information was that the fight was for one pound a side, but he believed it was really about rivalry as to who was the best fighter. Brown was said to have been the best man in Gloucester, and because Head and his friends were jealous, a fight was arranged. He believed ‘Tails’ had thrashed Brown, who appeared in court still badly bruised.


Both Head and Brown denied that the fight had been for money, and Brown said the two were now good friends. The chairman of the magistrates said prize-fighting had at one time been a popular pastime, patronised by gentlemen, but now it was only looked on as a barbarous sport. The defendants were bound over to keep the peace for twelve months. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 28TH



1907: The inaugural meeting of a local branch of the Dickens Fellowship was held at Northgate Mansions. Mr H.W. Bruton presided. As well as about thirty gentlemen, a number of ladies attended. An apology for his inability to attend was received from Mr Henry Dickens, KC, from Egerton Place, London. The President said he was delighted to see the number of attendees, and that forty-nine people had joined the Fellowship so far. He welcomed Mr Yoxall, Honorary Secretary of the Birmingham branch.


Mr Yoxall congratulated them on their numbers, saying forty-nine members to start a branch was almost unprecedented. They should remember that they were not just members of their branch, but of the great Dickens Fellowship, which meant they formed part of the world-wide fellowship of members who were lovers and students of Charles Dickens and his works. The main aim of the Fellowship, in his opinion, was to spread a love of humanity, and a feature of the Gloucester branch should be friendliness and fellowship.


Mr Fox, at the request of the President, recited The Cricket on the Hearth, which was greatly appreciated. Light refreshments were then taken. It was decided that there should be six evening meetings and a summer meeting in the branch’s first year. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 29TH



1878: At Shire Hall, the Gloucester Temperance Society held a meeting, chaired by the Bishop of Gloucester. The event was crowded, many of the audience being made up of the local clergy and prominent supporters of the temperance movement in the city. The Bishop, Mr Ellicott, gave a lengthy speech concerning the evils of drink. He commented that a friend of his who was a local magistrate believed that alcohol was the cause of many of the crimes which he heard of when on the bench.


The Bishop made special mention of Samuel Bowley, a local merchant and Quaker, who was one of the founders of the local movement and who worked tirelessly in the cause. (The Citizen)




JANUARY 30TH



1860: A group of local merchants got together on this day to discuss the formation of a joint stock company to manufacture railway wagons. The meeting resolved to form the Gloucester Wagon Company, starting with capital of £100,000, with 10,000 shares being offered at a price of £10 each. In April the same year, the foundation stone of the Gloucester Wagon Works was laid on its site on the banks of the Gloucester & Berkeley Canal.


The company presented its first annual report in February 1861, which showed that the workforce had grown from 100 hands at the start to 360, and that 313 wagons had been turned out. In 1887, the company’s name was changed to the Gloucester Railway Carriage and Wagon Company Limited. In January 1895, new buildings and a showroom were opened in Bristol Road. The company was taken over by Winget of Rochester in 1961, and from 1968 was known as Winget Gloucester. (www.glostransporthistory.visit.gloucestershire.co.uk)


[image: Image]


1857: Gloucester’s new cemetery was consecrated by the Bishop of Gloucester on a site at Tredworth. It was divided into two parts, with one side for Anglicans and the other for Non-Conformists. The building of a cemetery had become necessary after Acts of Parliament had been passed which prevented any more burials taking place in city churches and churchyards. (Hereford Times; A History of the County of Gloucester, Volume IV: The City of Gloucester, ed. N.M. Herbert, 1988)




JANUARY 31ST



1902: Deputy Chief Constable Nehemiah Philpott retired on this day, and attended his last police court in Gloucester. When he entered the courtroom, it was noticed that he was followed by two of his subordinate officers, who were each carrying a large basket containing tumblers. As it was known that there was to be a little ceremony to mark the DCC’s retirement, it was hoped that ‘something unusual in Police Court history’ was going to happen. Unfortunately, those expecting to be invited to ‘charge their glasses’ were disappointed to discover that the items were an exhibit in the case of someone who was accused of stealing them. The Chairman of the Magistrates did say a few words, but no alcohol was imbibed.
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